
 

1 

 

  

 

SUPERVISORY BOARD 

Meeting 25 September 2025 

14h30 – 16h30 

Minutes 

PARTICIPANTS 

BACCONNIER Estelle DG MOVE 

BANNHOLZER Constanze ÖBB 

DE LA HAYE Marcel CER 

DE MARCO TELESE Giancarlo  UIC 

DEMIRKAN AYDOGAN Merve EU-RAIL 

ENGELMANN Jens Railiable 

FURIO Nicolas EU-RAIL 

IBANEZ DE YRIGOYEN Javier EU-RAIL 

LUECKING Joachim DG MOVE 

NOËL Tibo NUON Consulting 

PETERHANS Gilles UIP 

PIRON Olivier  ERA 

TABOURET Hugo UNIFE 

TIONE Roberto Wabtec 

TOPAL-GOEKCELI Mark ÖBB 

VAN GILS Karel EU- RAIL 

ZAEHRINGER Sandy DG MOVE 

 

 

1. Introduction 

Joachim LUECKING (JL) opened the meeting by welcoming the participants. He 

introduced the agenda. No AOB was proposed, and the agenda was adopted. 

JL reported that €25 million has been awarded through the CEF call to support 

the commercial operations of trains equipped with the DAC Basic Package, and 



 

2 

 

that the Grant Agreement phase is being finalised between CINEA and the se-

lected consortium. He added that the project is expected to start in November 

2025 and that more details should be provided at the next EDDP SB meeting.  

Furthermore, he mentioned that the MFF proposal, including the CEF Programme 

3 with a €51.5 billion for transport package, doubling the amount in current 

MFF, has been adopted. He added that this underlined the importance of 

transport and connectivity for competitiveness and security, which are the two 

top priorities of the EU. Also, other programs potentially relevant for the 

transport sector and DAC, such as European Competitiveness Fund and a suc-

cessor to Horizon Europe are included in this proposal. Reminding the ongoing 

discussions in the EP and the Council, he encouraged participants to support the 

proposal and help convince EU legislators about the necessity of this increased 

amount.  

2. Review of actions since the last SB 

No actions were pending from the last SB meeting.  

3. Overview on DAC-related topics | update 

JE presented an overview of all DAC/EDDP related projects. He informed that 

the EU-Rail call for tender “Engineering solutions” and the Pioneer Trains project 

are now included in the portfolio. More information on the PioDAC trains will also 

be added once the Grant Agreement is signed, providing the complete picture.  

4. G/C: EU-Rail tender “engineering solutions” | state of play 

Karel VAN GILS (KVG) reported that the JU published a cascade tender last year 

for loco-retrofit solutions with a budget of €3 million. He stated that FP5-

TRANS4M-R and FP5-DACtiVate allocated locomotives for retrofitting. But he 

confirmed that the information from the CEF call and the DACFIT programme 

will be used to decide at the end on the locomotives for retrofitting. He noted 

that for this step, finalisation of the PioDAC trains project’s GAP phase is 

awaited.  

KVG presented the tenderer ranking and added that the first service contract 

for the type of locomotives to be reengineered for retrofitting are expected to 

be published later in 2025 to be ready in time for the DAC pioneer trains.  

Hugo TABOURET (HT) inquired about the scope of the expected work and 

whether the same kind of data will be requested from the locomotive suppliers 

by the tenderers as those asked under the DACFIT project. KVG clarified that 

more or less the same questions can be expected due to reengineering needs. 

He added, however, that as plan B, the tenderers were made aware of the pos-

sible need for reverse engineering. For expectation management, JE noted that 

maximum two or three locomotive types can be retrofitted. 

5. B1: “tiger team” | intermediate results 



 

3 

 

JE presented the background on the setting up of a tiger team and a hypothetical 

Gantt chart, which reflected the intermediate outcomes of the tiger team meet-

ings. JE underlined that the timeline is still hypothetical as the final plan of 

PioDAC project is not known yet. Please refer to the slides for more details.  

After giving detailed explanations on the major milestones in the timeline, JE 

noted that the pioneer trains are expected to start operations with assist func-

tions in November 2027 and with fully certified and authorised functions in Au-

tumn 2028. He pointed to the possibility to move this date earlier if margins 

between some milestones could be exploited. 

HT asked whether this planning has been agreed by all the members of the tiger 

team. JE confirmed that it has been agreed by all the members of the tiger 

team, including the loco-suppliers under FP5.  

MTG added that it was always known that at the end of FP5-TRANS4M-R, there 

will not be fully certified products due to the envisaged TRL level and that bridg-

ing the FP5 results and the pioneer trains operations was always necessary.  

JL thanked the tiger team for the work done and stressed the importance to see 

the pioneer trains operating as part of the PioDAC project.  

6. B1: 3rd DAC FDFTO Risk Management Workshop 

JE provided an overview of the top risks management status.  

Marcel DE LA HAYE (MLH) said that CER members find it risky if combined 

transport is not properly taken into account in pioneer trains.  

JE responded that with the fully intermodal Italian traffic and the Slovenian traf-

fic, which could also be considered as intermodal, the pioneer trains should still 

cover intermodal traffic.  

MLH asked how the risk of reduced representativity, due to the reduced budget 

for the pioneer trains project and thus fewer pioneer trains, could be mitigated. 

MTG noted that the reality should be faced as it is and expressed his happiness 

at receiving funding to operate this type of technology on a commercial basis 

for the first time. Regarding comments on the reduced budget, JL pointed to the 

status of the mitigation measures table and reminded the need to change the 

status of the risks for the better to receive higher amounts of investments in 

the future.  

7. B1/G/C: Draft overview on DAC loco equipment issues 

JE presented the loco (DAC) equipment issues, actors and actions to contribute 

to their resolution. MTG added that this issue was clear from the beginning, and 

underlined that the three main issues, crashworthiness and the frame strength; 

weight; and the integration of digital system and power in the loco, are man-

ageable for a new loco. For the existing locos which are feasible to be retrofitted, 

he underlined the criticality of time and the need for cooperation including those 

responsible for manufacturing them. For him, it seems that some of the loco-

motive manufacturers do not have it in their strategy to integrate this into the 



 

4 

 

future freight loco in Europe and commented that it will be also in their interest 

to align their projects accordingly. 

HT stressed the importance of time and of the existing regulatory framework, 

where changes brought to locomotives must be authorised following an estab-

lished process. He underlined that the locomotive manufacturers are supporting 

and believe in DAC and integrating DAC into locomotives is included in their 

strategy.  

JL stated that this issue needs to be carefully managed. For new locos, he ad-

vised manufacturers to be prepared for meeting the demand of RUs for future 

locomotives in line with the DAC specifications. For retrofit issues, he said a 

discussion will take place following the EDDP SB meeting, and he expressed EC’s 

readiness to engage with stakeholders to find a solution.  

8. B2: Stakeholder Management: overview dissemination/comm ac-
tivities 

JE presented an overview of the past and upcoming events and mentioned that 

based on EB’s request in the EDDP PB feedback received during these events 

will be shared.  

Nicolas FURIO (NF) then shared his impressions from the TRAKO event, where 

DAC was promoted through guided tours and some manufacturers’ exhibition of 

DAC prototypes. Referring to a session on DAC, he stated that Chamber of Com-

merce of Poland gave a presentation with slides highlighting that DAC is too 

expensive and will not bring any benefit to rail freight undertakings. He said that 

PKP tried to balance the strong message delivered during this event. 

JE said that only functioning pioneer trains can help change such convictions. 

Referring to the role of PKP in the event, EB said that whoever is part of the 

EDDP project should also take part in being a promoter. She underlined the need 

to be more consistent and to voice up the DAC’s expected benefits during these 

events.  

JE suggested Test Train Lab in Spandau as a stakeholder channel and said that 

those wishing to visit can contact FP5. Constanze BANNHOLZER (CB) added that 

the project invites everyone, especially those with access to the unions, to con-

tact her and nominate participants.  

9. B1: Need for overarching project coordination after e. o. 

EDDP/DACcord 

Gilles PETERHANS (GP) made a presentation on the need for overarching project 

coordination after the end of EDDP/DACcord. He noted that EDDP achieved sig-

nificant progress so far and reminded participants of the multiple DAC related 

projects, the challenges of ensuring collaboration between the projects and 

stakeholders and the importance of having a “conductor” to orchestrate them.  



 

5 

 

MTG added that the initial idea was for the PioDAC project consortium to take 

over coordination. However, he stressed that while this consortium will be fo-

cused on delivering the project results, a lot of issues, risks, interfaces, coordi-

nation will still need to be managed in parallel.  

MLH expressed full support for an overarching project coordination going beyond 

the PioDAC project, referring to the wide range of activities managed under 

EDDP. He suggested it could also be linked to High-Level Deployment Group. He 

reported that CER is discussing internally about how this could be organised.  

NF underlined the value of EDDP’s role. He underlined that the JU has not 

planned any follow-up funded projects after DACcord but confirmed that the JU 

is committed to continue organising the EDDP PB and SB meetings. He said the 

question should be directed to the sector about how they see the future of EDDP 

and how to finance it. MLH responded that CER and its members do not propose 

to take over the programme but to get a proper instrument to continue the 

EDDP coordination activities.  

GP asked about the legality and practicality to organise EDDP under the System 

Pillar framework contract or through a specific contract where all the representa-

tive bodies are present. NF replied that the legal perspective needs to be 

checked with the legal team, but that SP’s scope of work (system architecture 

and specifications) differs from that of the EDDP (coordination). KVG added that 

the JU has a limited budget for activities under SP, and that the deployment 

group established last year also had no formal budget. On FRMCS topics three 

members stepped forward to jointly finance some activities, and he suggested 

this model could also apply to other topics.  

HT also voiced support for the continuation of EDDP activities. He said that on 

DAC topic, the operating community has the lead and that UNIFE will follow on 

possible initiatives. MTG added that so many issues are needed to be managed 

that, rather than relying on in-kind support, it would be useful to have someone 

dedicated to this work on a daily basis. 

Since no budget has yet been foreseen, JL emphasised the need to find a prag-

matic solution for the continuation of the EDDP programme manager activities 

and called on the industry to consider whether an effort from the industry can 

be made to support this important activity.  

FP5-TRANS4M-R/FDFTO 

10. FP5-TRANS4M-R | state of play (main risk points) 

CB stated that the pressure created by the tiger team for the purpose of pioneer 

trains helped the project management to put pressure on several topics. For the 

status on key areas, please refer to the slides.  

On functional requirements incl. RAMMS, she mentioned that the project is cur-

rently finalising the targets with the industry and expected that at the next EDDP 

SB, she will be able to present the value aligned with the industry.  



 

6 

 

On test and demo, she reported that preparations are ongoing for two demon-

strations in Austria and Italia. She said that first Vectron locomotive is being 

retrofitted in Germany and that the first batch of wagons are being equipped 

with DACs. The first test runs are expected in this quarter. She noted that sev-

eral delays took place in retrofitting plans due to workshop capacities, whose 

mitigation required a lot of coordination. KVG asked more about the mitigation 

measures to solve or avoid these delays. CB mentioned that when risks to de-

mos arise, escalation measures are applied quickly and are proving effective. 

She also mentioned that the project is running through a quality gate dedicated 

to DAC and that preliminary tests with different suppliers will run in October, 

whose results will confirm if the coupler is safe to be installed in demo trains. 

She said more information will be provided in the next EDDP SB.   

On authorisation, she mentioned that a working group has been set up with ERA 

on the pioneer DAC trains where mission critical authorisation topics are being 

analysed.  

11. DAC Basic Package “medium detail spec” (e g for nat. fund-

ing schemes) 

JE presented a detailed definition of the DAC Basic Package. Please refer to the 

slides for more information. The document was approved by the Programme 

Board. JE said that the document will be distributed via SRG (State Represent-

atives Group) of the JU and that it could be useful when applying for national 

funding streams. The Supervisory board confirmed the Programme Board ap-

proval. 

→ Publishing the DAC Basic Package “medium detail spec” on the 

JU’s website (Action for the JU). 

12. WP19 LCC assessment by the JU | state of play (oral update) 

Javier IBANEZ DE YRIGOYEN (JIY) reported that on the following day, the pro-

ject will submit the revised version of the deliverable. The JU will then proceed 

with its assessment. He said more information as to the gaps identified and how 

the project addressed them will be provided in the next EDDP SB.  

13. AOB and closing 

JL thanked participants for their availability and contributions and concluded the 

meeting. 

 


